
JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 9:31 AM                                                            

 

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS: Police Commission members present: Morgan Kasuske, 

John Hackwith, and Tim Shanks.  Also present were Lt. Doug Mahlum and Applicant(s) Peyton Mitchell, 

and Alyssa Olson   

 

 PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. APPROVE December 15th,  2022 MEETING MINUTES.  

Commissioner Shanks moved, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith to accept the minutes from 

the December 15th, 2022 meeting.    

 

Motion carried 3-0 

 NEW BUSINESS 

1. POLICE COMMISSION’S EXAMINATION OF APPLICANT(S): DANIEL LAWSON 

FOR THE POLICE FORCE – GREAT FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

 

Lt. Mahlum stated that the application(s) of Peyton Mitchell and Alyssa Olson had been referred 

to the Police Commission.  Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann.  §7-32-4154, this meeting is an 

examination of the applicant as to their age, legal, mental, moral, and physical qualifications and 

their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.   

 

Lt. Mahlum read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-4151, that sets forth the role of the 

Police Commission; reviewed each item provided to the Commission members in their meeting 

packets; and, read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-303, qualifications of law 

enforcement officers.  He explained that this meeting is for the Police Commission to review the 

documentation, conduct the examination of each applicant, and make a determination as to whether 

each applicant meets the qualifications of a law enforcement officer.     

 

He read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 2-3-203(3).  He asked the applicant’s position with 

regard to right to privacy.  Applicant(s) Mitchell and Olson asserted their rights to privacy. 

 

Lt. Mahlum noted that there is substantial value in having the examination confidential to have a 

frank and open discussion with the applicants and to gain an accurate view of qualifications to 

determine their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.  Lt. Mahlum determined 

that each applicant(s) individual privacy clearly exceeded the merits of public disclosure, and 

closed the meeting for the Commission to conduct each applicant(s) examination in executive 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 2 of 8 

 

session. 

At 9:40 AM members of the Commission and Lt. Mahlum, met in executive session in the City 

Commission Chambers for the purpose of the Commission conducting the examination of 

applicant(s), Peyton Mitchell and Alyssa Olson.     

 

-  -EXECUTIVE SESSION - - 

 

Applicant Peyton Mitchell 

*Session began at 9:40 AM and concluded at 10:12 AM 

 

Commissioner Shanks started the session by asking Mitchell what his long term goal was.  

 

Mitchell responded by saying he hoped to do 20 years with the GFPD.  Some in Patrol, Detectives 

and explore the ranks to even Sergeant or Lieutenant.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked if he was interested in Captain and Mitchell responded he would 

consider it.  Commissioner Shanks again asked if 20 years was a legitimate goal of Mitchell’s.  

Mitchell stated he would maybe look at options within the Federal Government at some point down 

the road in his career.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske cautioned Mitchell that typically Federal law enforcement pays better but 

the retirement isn’t what it appears.  

 

Mitchell responded that Federal law enforcement wasn’t his goal but would consider all 

opportunities.  

 

Commissioner Shanks stated a lot of money goes into getting an applicant on board with the GFPD.  

He then asked if Mitchell had any aspirations for other bureaus within the GFPD.   

 

Mitchell stated he hadn’t thought a lot about other Bureaus, but he was interested in the SRO and 

Detective positions.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked a hypothetical question to Mitchell asking him if he couldn’t obtain 

one of the specialty positions quickly enough for Mitchell, would that be a deciding factor for him 

to leave for a Federal law enforcement job?   

 

Mitchell replied that it wouldn’t be a deciding factor, but he would consider all factors before 

making a change.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Mitchell what his short term goals were.  

 

Mitchell stated he wants to learn and grow from his Field Training Officers (FTO) and to become 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 3 of 8 

 

an FTO at some point. He stated he is super close to finishing his degree and wants to get that done 

and focus on the Academy. He wants to obtain his Master’s Degree as well, but is more of a long 

term goal.  

 

Commission Kasuske told Mitchell that at some point he may be presented with becoming an FTO 

and he challenged him to pursue this option.  

 

Commissioner Shanks told Mitchell that the more exposure he obtained to other Bureaus would 

also prepare him for promotion in the future.  Commissioner Shanks then asked Mitchell if his dad 

had not been a GFPD officer would he have consider applying for the GFPD.   

 

Mitchell responded that he didn’t know if he would have wanted to be a police officer if had not 

been exposed to the job in the first place, but would think he would.  

 

Commissioner Shanks explained to Mitchell that there were several awards available at the 

Academy and that the GFPD had high expectations of their candidates attending MLEA.  He also 

told Mitchell to stay out of trouble at the Academy as sometimes things happen.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske let Mitchell know that in his Academy Basic class he lost 7-officers while 

at the Academy because of disciplinary issues.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated the idea of living in a fish bowl is expected when hired with the 

GFPD.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith followed up with a hypothetical question to Mitchell asking him how he 

would respond to a direct order from a supervisor that he knew to be un-constitutional.  What would 

he do.   

 

Mitchell stated he wouldn’t follow the order and would discuss with his supervisor why he 

wouldn’t.  He would take the issue to a higher ranking supervisor if needed, but would not violate 

anyone’s rights.  He would hope to come to an agreement, but wouldn’t follow through with an 

un-constitutional order.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated he wasn’t aware of that ever happening at the GFPD and stated 

Mitchell’s Oath was to the Constitution.  He also stated he didn’t envy Mitchell’s position as a new 

police officer in today’s climate.  

 

Commissioner Shanks followed up with a hypothetical statement asking Mitchell what he would 

do if he witnessed an FTO steal something while investigating a Burglary complaint.   

 

Mitchell stated he would confront the officer immediately and then follow up with a supervisor.  

He would trust that his supervisor would handle the issue appropriately.  



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Commissioner Shanks then asked what Mitchell would do as a new officer who conducted a 

suspected DUI traffic stop only to learn the driver was a GFPD Captain and how he would handle 

it.   

 

Mitchell stated he would conduct the stop as any other and contact a supervisor.  He would not 

expect to treat them any differently than anyone else.  He thought he would be pretty angry with 

the Captain for putting him in the position.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked what he would do if ordered to arrest the Captain by a Lieutenant or 

Sergeant.  Mitchell stated he would make the arrest and hope they would support him or have his 

back.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Mitchell what he would do if the Sergeant told him to drive the 

Captain home. 

 

Mitchell stated he would most likely make a phone call to a higher up supervisor and wouldn’t 

want to be put in that situation.  Mitchell stated he felt it would be most appropriate if a supervisor 

made the arrest.   

 

Commissioner Shanks then asked Mitchell what he would do if the driver was the Sheriff?   

Mitchell stated he would definitely contact a supervisor and look for guidance.   

 

Commissioner Shanks stated he brought these scenarios up because they have taken place in other 

communities, specifically Lewis and Clark County.   

 

Mitchell commented that having been in the military he is accustomed to people being held 

accountable for good and bad.  He believes he would lead by example and set the standard.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith commented to Mitchell that he would be working with a really good 

Command Staff at the GFPD.   

 

Commissioner Shanks commented on the Command Staff and the culture of the Police Department 

and how much it has grown for the better over time.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Mitchell about his time on the Montana Physical Abilities Test and 

thought he could do better.  Mitchell responded that he would definitely improve.   

 

Hearing no further questioning from the Commissioners the Executive Session was closed.  

   

The Executive Session with Peyton Mitchell came to close at 10:12 AM.   

 

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 5 of 8 

 

Applicant Peyton Alyssa Olson 

*Session began at 10:12 AM and concluded at 10:48 AM 

 

Commissioner Hackwith greeted Olson and asked how long she’d been in the Air Force.  

 

Olson stated she received a voluntary separation under Honorable Conditions after a breast 

reduction surgery an injury to her back.  She attempted to change to several different career fields 

but wasn’t able to accomplish it in time.  She stated her time in the Air Force wasn’t her best 

experience.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Olson why she had chosen to become a police officer.   

 

Olson stated there were three generations of law enforcement in her family and she was exposed 

to a lot of it growing up, both good and bad.  She still loved all of it.  She’s just known it was what 

she wanted to do for quite some time.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked if her mom and dad were ok with her going in to law enforcement.   

 

Olson stated they were both very supportive of it as long as it wasn’t a position in Washington 

State, because of many of the law changes and political dynamic.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked if her parents realized she would be exposed to things here in Great 

Falls and if she’d ever been exposed to any Academy classes in Washington.   

 

Olson stated they were aware Great Falls is busy.  She’d never taken part in any classes but she 

had attended a few sexual assault classes her mom taught.  

 

Commissioner Shanks talked about GFPD’s high expectations while at the Academy.  He also 

discussed opportunity to get in trouble and how it was expected of her to represent the GFPD.  He 

told her to get there, have fun, and perform.   

 

Olson stated she understood and high expectations of herself as well and that she wanted to well.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Olson a hypothetical question and how she would handle witnessing 

an FTO stealing something while on a call.   

 

Olson stated she would immediately take it to a supervisor and talk with the officer.   

 

Commissioner Shanks continued and asked her how she would handle making a DUI stop only to 

learn the driver was a GFPD Captain.   

 

Olson stated she would report to a supervisor but would have no problem investigating it.   



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Olson if she would be worried the Captain could have influence on 

her at work.  Olson responded she would document any issues and take it to a supervisor.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked if it would make a difference if the driver was a good friend of hers.  

Olson responded she would treat it the same.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Olson where she saw herself in 20 years.  

 

Olson responded she hoped to be with the GFPD for 25 years and in that time maybe an SVU 

Detective.  Commissioner Shanks asked if she had any interest in Chief of Police and stated Great 

Falls had never had a female Chief of Police.   

 

Olson stated that if she was qualified she would consider it, but would not want anything just 

because she is a female.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked if Olson’s boyfriend was supportive of her taking a law enforcement 

position.  She stated he is very supportive.  Commissioner Shanks stated shift work can be tough.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Olson if today was her birthday and she stated it was.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith then asked how Olson would handle being given a direct order that would 

violated an individual’s constitutional rights.   

 

Olson stated she would not follow through with the order, but would talk with the supervisor. She 

knows she would absolutely not do it.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked if Olson had ever been in a fight.  Olson stated she hadn’t other than 

fighting with her brothers growing up and having been punched once by an autistic client.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske stated a fight for your life can happen in law enforcement.  Olson stated 

she would rely on her training and she’s also considered some Brazilian Ju Jitsu as well.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith rhetorically asked and then stated, You know who wins the fight every 

time, the person that is the most violent.   

 

Commissioner Shanks then told Olson to expose herself to many different positions and Bureaus 

and to stay open minded.  The first tested rank she would see is Master Police Officer and all others 

after that.  Commissioner Shanks pushed her to take all opportunities to test when she was eligible 

and hoped that she would stick around with the GFPD.   

 

Olson stated her and her boyfriend both love the area and do not see themselves moving.   

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Commissioner Kasuske stated the first opportunity for her may be becoming an FTO and told her 

to take the opportunity to train others.   

 

Commissioner Shanks stated that being an FTO provides you with a lot of opportunity to influence 

other officers and GFPD decisions, and again stated to test at any opportunity.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked if Olson like to write.   

 

Olson stated she is comfortable with typing.   

 

Commissioner Shanks generally discussed many different athletic opportunities with Police and 

Fire Games such as Guns n Hoses.  

 

Olson stated she had played competitive softball through age 18 and was excited for the 

opportunities.    

 

 Hearing no further questioning from the Commissioners the Executive Session was closed.  

   

The Executive Session with Alyssa Olson came to close at 10:48 AM.   

 

The meeting reconvened in an open meeting in the City Commission chambers at 10:48 AM.   

 

Lt. Mahlum summarized the Commission’s examination of the applicant(s) for the police force; 

that the Commission reviewed the background of the applicant(s); and, that Peyton Mitchell and 

Alyssa Olson, meet the age, legal, mental, moral and physical qualifications and they are eligible 

to be members of the Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Commissioner Shanks moved, seconded by Commissioner Kasuske, that the Police 

Commission approve of applicant(s), Peyton Mitchell and Alyssa Olson, for hiring 

consideration as member(s) of the Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Lt. Mahlum asked if there was any public comment.  Hearing none, Lt. Mahlum asked if there was 

any further discussion among the Commissioners.   

 

There being no further discussion, Lt. Mahlum called for the vote. 

 

Motion carried 3-0. 

All three Commissioners signed the certificate(s) authorizing Peyton Mitchell and Alyssa 

Olson to become a member(s) of the Great Falls Police Department.  

 

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Rainbow Room, Civic Center 

March 30th, 2023 - - 9:30 AM 
 

 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Kasuske moved 

to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith, to adjourn the meeting of March 30th, 2022 

at 10:52 AM.   

 

Motion carried 3-0.  

_________________________________ 

                                             Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 

 

Minutes Approved: _______________, 2023 

 

 

Minutes approved 4/18/23 Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 


